Write up of the Kings Worthy House talk - March 2013

The history of Kings Worthy House was obviously something a lot of local people were curious about given the large audience for Alix Hickman’s talk.  The first evidence of this house was an advertisement in the Hampshire Advertiser in June 1860 inviting tenders from builders who wished to build “a dwelling house to be called Worthy Lodge”.  The census taken the following year shows the house was being built.  The first resident appears to have been Dame Sophia Anne Watson, widow of Sir Frederick Watson and daughter of Sir William Thoyts, High Sheriff of Berkshire.  Little is known of Sophia’s time in Kings Worthy other than the fact that she used to visit the school to inspect the needlework.  She died in 1869 and is buried at St. Mary’s.
The next residents were Edward and Mary Ann Daniell.  Again, little is known of their brief residency in Kings Worthy other than a news article of 1871.  It reported that while driving through Headbourne Worthy during a storm, their carriage was hit by lightning killing their coachman on the spot! In 1874 Edward died and Mary Ann moved to Brighton.  There was a massive sale of furniture and the house was sold to the Turnor family.  
The Turnors are probably the best known residents as they lived at the house for four decades and were great benefactors.  Richard Whitehead Turnor bought the church a new organ, paid for the Ascension window in memory of his father and also provided the Reading Room and Almshouses.  Sadly he was blind and paralyzed and died young, in 1888.  His parents also died and left Emma Turnor as the only member of the family.  She lived there, with her companion Margaret Ethel Sturges, until her death in 1916. 
Charles and Dora Fetherstonhaugh lived briefly at the house.  Charles had made his money in tea and coffee plantations in Ceylon.  After living at Kings Worthy House they moved to Northlands, Worthy Road. 
Gerald and Mary Curry lived at Kings Worthy House from around 1920 through to 1946.  Little is remembered about Gerald as he died in 1927.  Mary, on the other hand, is often mentioned in the reminiscences held in the WLHG records.  She was a very smart woman who looked like Queen Mary in her toque.  She and her pugs were driven by a uniformed chauffeur.  Mary was very involved in charitable works in the village, including fundraising for the building of the jubilee hall.  During this time the lodge was occupied by the Matcham family and Richard Matcham was employed as the gardener.  During the war his children/grandchildren took refuge at the lodge house and remember, among other things, the spiders lurking in the outside loo.  Mary Curry died in 1956 but the Matchams remained at the lodge while the main house was turned into a hotel and then a children’s’ home. 
In 1952 there was a fire at the main house.  Fire crews came from Winchester and Alresford to tackle the blaze and to rescue the children trapped inside.  Luckily only one child was injured and only mildly. After this time the house was used as a lodging house and run by the Cowells.  By then the lodge was occupied by the Hibbert family and they made much effort to modernise their home with mains water, electricity etc.  
By 1963 the house was vacant and under demolition.  A fire broke out, probably due to the vandals and “hippies” that were reported to have moved in.  Many large country houses were demolished at this time, by 1955 one large house was being demolished every five days.  In the case of Kings Worthy House it is likely that the possibility of a road being built on part of the property was partially to blame for its decay. Today the property is owned by a company from Jersey.  
Two planning applications have been made (in 1985 and 1992) to turn the land into technology/light industrial parks but both applications were refused.  Today it is possible to walk through the property and trace where the gates were and the buildings.  Only rubble remains from what was a beautiful Victorian pile.

